
 
GULF BREEZE CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 

 

MARCH 21, 2016 
          MONDAY, 6:30 P.M. 

  COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
  
1. ROLL CALL, INVOCATION, AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 

March 7, 2016, Regular meeting 
March 7, 2016, CRA meeting 

 
3. PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 

 
Recognition of Police Officer Patrick Pulley 

 
4. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES:   
 

Ordinance No. 02-16  Amending Section 24-51 of the Code of Ordinances as it 
 pertains to off-street automobile parking and storage 

    (SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING) 
 
Ordinance No. 03-16  Amending Section 2-1 of the Code of Ordinances and Section 

9(b) of the City's Charter pertaining to deadline for qualification 
of candidates 

    (FIRST READING) 
 

Resolution No. 08-16  Approving a budget for the expenditure of Tourist Development 
Taxes for Fiscal Year 2016  

        
5. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS* 
 

A. Authorization to place blue bows on the City's reader board, two "Gulf Breeze" signs, and trees 
located in the median, during the month of April in recognition of Child Abuse Awareness 
Month 

 
B. Approval of a revised Interlocal Agreement with Santa Rosa County regarding tourist 

development taxes 
 

C. Approval of Development Review Board Recommendation: 

George Gamble and Matthew Gamble 
400 Navy Cove Boulevard 
Request to replace a dock and seawall  



 
Mable Holton, As Trustee 
17 North Sunset Boulevard 

  Request to construct a new seawall 
 

D. Authorization for Rueben Surveying and Mapping to perform survey work associated with the 
police facilities needs assessment in the amount of $4,675  

 
E. Authorization to purchase twelve APX 1000 radios from Motorola at a cost of $24,900 for the 

Public Services Department 
 

F. Authorization for a change order for Utility Service Co. for asphalt milling and 1.5" overlay for 
Center Street, Russ Drive, and Nightingale Lane  

 
G. Approval to adjust the Waste Transfer Station fees  

 
*These are items considered routine in nature and will be considered by one motion.  
If any citizen wishes to voice an opinion on one of the items, you should advise the 
Council immediately. 

 
6. ACTION AGENDA ITEMS: 

 
A. Approval to replace residential karts with dumpsters on Stearns Street, construct two dumpster 

enclosures, maintain the current fee structure and earmark monthly savings for twenty-three 
months in order to recoup capital cost  

 
B. Approval of a retainer agreement with Mesimer and Associates with regards to the Pensacola 

Bay Bridge eminent domain case   
 

C. Consideration of a non-resident tennis fee 
 
7. NEW ITEMS  
 
8. INFORMATION ITEMS  
 
9. PUBLIC FORUM  

 
10. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
If any person decides to appeal any decisions made with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or 
public hearing, such person may need to insure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record 
includes the testimony and any evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. The public is invited to comment 
on matters before the City Council upon seeking and receiving recognition from the Chair.   If you are a person 
with a disability who needs accommodation in order to participate in a public hearing you are entitled to the 
provision of certain assistance.  Please contact the City Clerk’s office at (850) 934-5115 or at 1070 Shoreline 
Drive, Gulf Breeze at least one (1) week prior to the date of the public hearing. 



















EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES  MARCH 16, 2016 

EXECUTIVE	MEETING	MINUTES																							MARCH	16,	2016	 Page	1	
 

The Gulf Breeze City Council held an Executive Meeting at Gulf Breeze City Hall on 
Wednesday, March 16, 2016, at 6:30 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL, INVOCATION, AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
Upon call of the roll the following Councilmembers were present: Councilwoman Renee 
Bookout, Councilwoman Cherry Fitch, Mayor Pro Tem Joseph Henderson, and Mayor Matt 
Dannheisser.  Councilman David G. Landfair was not in attendance.      
 
PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS:  None 
 
ACTION AGENDA ITEMS 

 

A. Approval of Ordinance 02-16 pertaining to off-street automobile parking and storage, 
amending Section 24-51 of the Code of Ordinances 
 
Reference: City Manager memo dated March 11, 2016 

 
Councilwoman Fitch made a motion to approve Ordinance No. 02-16 on Second Reading and 
Public Hearing on March 21, 2016.   Mayor Pro Tem Henderson seconded.  The vote for 
approval was unanimous.   
 

B.  Approval of Ordinance 03-16 pertaining to deadline for qualification of candidates, 
amending the City's Charter, Section 9(b),  and the City's Code of Ordinances, Section 2-
1 
 
Reference: City Clerks memo dated March 11, 2016 

 
Recommendation:  That the City Council approve Ordinance No. 03-16 on First Reading 
on Monday, March 21, 2016, and schedule a Second Reading and Public Hearing on 
April 4, 2016.   
 

Councilwoman Fitch made a motion to approve Ordinance No. 03-16 on First Reading on 
March 21, 2016, and schedule a Second Reading and Public Hearing on April 4, 2016.  
Councilwoman Bookout seconded.  The vote to approval was unanimous. 

 
C. Authorization to place blue bows on the City's reader board, two "Gulf Breeze" signs, and 

trees located in the median, during the month of April in recognition of Child Abuse 
Awareness Month 

 
 Reference: Director of Parks & Recreation memo dated February 26, 2016 

 
Recommendation:  That the City Council recognize April as Child Abuse Awareness 
Month and allow the Gulf Coast Kids House to install bows within the median of 
Highway 98, as described.   
 



EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES  MARCH 16, 2016 

EXECUTIVE	MEETING	MINUTES																							MARCH	16,	2016	 Page	2	
 

Mayor Pro Tem Henderson made a motion to place staff's recommendation on the March 21, 
2016, Regular Council meeting agenda. Councilwoman Fitch seconded.  The vote for approval 
was unanimous.  
 

D. Approval to replace residential karts with dumpsters on Stearns Street, construct two 
dumpster enclosures, maintain the current fee structure and earmark monthly savings for 
twenty-three months in order to recoup capital cost 
 

 Reference: Code Enforcement Officer Craig Chamberlain memo dated March 9, 2016 
 

Recommendation:  That the City Council approve the construction of dumpster 
enclosures and authorize the replacement of karts with dumpsters on Stearns Street.  The 
project is to be financed by maintaining the current fee structure and withholding the 
monthly savings for twenty-three months.   

  
Mayor Pro Tem Henderson made a motion to approve Staff's recommendation on the condition 
that a letter be sent to each of the twenty-three residents allowing them reasonable opportunity to 
contact staff with concerns. Councilwoman Fitch seconded.  The vote for approval was 
unanimous. 
 

E. Approval of a revised Interlocal Agreement with Santa Rosa County regarding tourist 
development taxes 
 

 Reference: Deputy City Manager memo dated March 10, 2016 
 

Recommendation: That the City Council approve the revised Interlocal Agreement 
with Santa Rosa County regarding tourist development taxes as presented.   
 

Councilwoman Bookout made a motion to place staff’s recommendation, with corrections to the 
Interlocal Agreement, on the March 21, 2016, Regular meeting agenda.  Councilwoman Fitch 
seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous. 

 
F. Approval of Resolution 08-16 adopting a budget for tourist development taxes for Fiscal 

Year 2016 
  

 Reference: Deputy City Manager memo dated March 10, 2016 
 

Recommendation: That the City Council adopt Resolution 08-16 approving a budget 
for tourist development taxes for Fiscal Year 2016. 
 
Mayor Dannheisser asked that recommendations for members of the Tourist 
Development Advisory Committee be presented for consideration at the next set of 
Council meetings.   
 

Mayor Pro Tem Henderson made a motion to place staff's recommendation on the March 21, 
2016, Regular meeting agenda. Councilwoman Fitch seconded.  The vote for approval was 
unanimous.   



EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES  MARCH 16, 2016 

EXECUTIVE	MEETING	MINUTES																							MARCH	16,	2016	 Page	3	
 

G. Approval of Development Review Board Recommendation: 
 

George Gamble and Matthew Gamble 
400 Navy Cove Boulevard 
Request to replace a dock and seawall  
 
Mable Holton, As Trustee 
17 North Sunset Boulevard 
Request to construct a new seawall 

 
 Reference: March 8, 2016, Development Review Board Minutes 
 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Henderson made a motion to place the Development Review Board's 
recommendations on the March 21, 2016, Regular meeting agenda.   Councilwoman Bookout 
seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous.   
 

H. Authorization for Rueben Surveying and Mapping to perform survey work associated 
with the police facilities needs assessment in the amount of $4,675 
 
Reference: Deputy City Manager memo dated March 10, 2016 

 
Recommendation: That the City Council accept the proposal for survey work 
associated with five City owned properties from Rueben Surveying and Mapping of Gulf 
Breeze for a cost of $4,675.   

 
Mayor Pro Tem Henderson made a motion to place staff’s recommendation on the March 21, 
2016, Regular meeting agenda.  Councilwoman Landfair seconded.  The vote for approval was 
unanimous.  
 

I. Authorization to purchase twelve APX 1000 radios from Motorola at a cost of $24,900 
for the Public Services Department 
 
Reference: Director of Public Services and Senior Service Worker memo dated March 
  11, 2016 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council authorize the purchase of 12 APX 1000 
radios from Motorola for $24,900.00 with funding assigned as listed in the above 
referenced memo.   
 

Councilwoman Fitch made a motion to place staff’s recommendation on the March 21, 2016, 
Regular meeting agenda.  Councilwoman Bookout seconded.  The vote for approval was 
unanimous.  
 

J. Authorization for Kenneth Horne & Associates, Inc., to complete a design concept for the 
realignment of Live Oak Street at Gulf Breeze Parkway in an amount not to exceed 
$4,800 
 
Reference:  Director of Community Services memo dated March 11, 2016 
 



EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES  MARCH 16, 2016 

EXECUTIVE	MEETING	MINUTES																							MARCH	16,	2016	 Page	4	
 

Recommendation: That the City Council meet as the Board of Directors of the 
Community Redevelopment Agency on March 21, 2016, and authorize Kenneth Horne & 
Associates, Inc., to complete the design concept for the realignment of Live Oak Street at 
Gulf Breeze Parkway for an amount not to exceed $4,800.00.  
 

Councilwoman Fitch made a motion to place staff’s recommendation on the March 21, 2016, 
Community Redevelopment Agency meeting agenda.  Councilwoman Bookout.  The vote for 
approval was unanimous.  

 
K. Authorization for a change order for Utility Service Co. for asphalt milling and 1.5" 

overlay for Center Street, Russ Drive, and Nightingale Lane 
 

Reference:  City Manager memo dated March 11, 2016 
 

Recommendation: That the City Council authorize a change order to Utility Service Co. 
for asphalt milling and 1.5" overlay for the Northern Section Stormwater Project as 
illustrated for $60,088.   

 
Mayor Pro Tem Henderson made a motion to place staff’s recommendation on the March 21, 
2016, Regular meeting agenda.  Councilwoman Fitch seconded.  The vote for approval was 
unanimous.  
 

L. Approval to adjust the Waste Transfer Station fees 
 

Reference: Deputy City Manager memo dated March 8, 2016 
 

Recommendation:  No recommendation provided (Council will make formal decision)  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Henderson made a motion that City resident rates remain the same ($10.00 per 
truck load), increase non-resident rates to $35.00/truck load, and commercial rates to $60/truck 
load.  Councilwoman Bookout seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous.  
  

M. Approval of a retainer agreement with Mesimer and Associates with regards to the 
Pensacola Bay Bridge eminent domain case   
 
Reference: City Manager memo dated March 11, 2016 
 
The City Manager advised that the retainer agreement was received and distributed to the 
Council prior to the meeting.  He suggested that the item be placed on the agenda for 
consideration Monday night.  The City Attorney advised that he had some concerns with 
certain provisions of the agreement.  Staff and City Attorney will work to have the 
revised agreement ready for distribution to the Council in Friday's agenda packet. 
(No action was taken on this item.)   

 
N. Consideration of a non-resident tennis fee 

 
Reference: Director of Parks & Recreation memo dated March 9, 2016 



EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES  MARCH 16, 2016 

EXECUTIVE	MEETING	MINUTES																							MARCH	16,	2016	 Page	5	
 

 
Recommendation: Upon direction from Council to proceed with the implementation 
of user fee structure for City tennis courts, we recommend utilization of the proposed fee 
structure, implemented through Option 1, as outlined in the above referenced memo.   
 

 Council had lengthy discussion regarding this item.   
 

J.B. Schluter, 485 Deer Point Drive, spoke on behalf of the Ladies Tennis League.  He 
suggested increasing the fees paid by the Ladies Tennis League as opposed to creating a 
gated tennis facility.   

 
John Tolan, 754 Peake's Point Drive, asked the Council to be mindful not to increase the 
fees to the point where the Ladies League would want to play elsewhere.   

 
Chuck Emling, 605 Chesepeake Drive, discussed the Gulf Breeze Sports Association 
fees, use by instructors/professionals of City facilities, discussed the original 
implementation of a fee for the Ladies League, and agreed that a minimal fee should be 
charged.  He also agreed to be on the committee to research tennis fees.   

 
Councilwoman Fitch made a motion directing Staff to form a committee, two members of which 
would be J.B. Schluter and Chuck Emling, to research a fee structure and polling the community 
for use of the tennis courts.  Councilwoman Bookout seconded.  The vote for approval was 3-1 
with Mayor Pro Tem Henderson dissenting.  
 
NEW ITEMS      

None 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS   

 The City Manager advised that Staff has made arrangements to lease a traffic control 
cabinet (located at the intersection of Highway 98 and Hospital Drive) for $1,500 until the new 
cabinet is installed by the Florida Department of Transportation. 
 
 PUBLIC FORUM   

 Robert Turpin, 2 Madrid Avenue, asked about the plans for the After School Program 
during the summer.  The City Manager advised that the students would attend the Summer Camp 
program and staff would most likely work the Summer Camp.  He also asked that the City 
consider using Tourist Development funds to improve waterway accesses. 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
 Councilwoman Bookout asked about the timing of the Starbuck median closure.  The 
City Manager advised that FDOT has delayed the closure after October 1st.   
 
 Councilwoman Fitch asked if there was anything the City could do, maybe in conjunction 
with Pensacola, to monitor or additional enforcement on the Pensacola Bay Bridge to help 
reduce the number of wrecks.   
 



EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES  MARCH 16, 2016 

EXECUTIVE	MEETING	MINUTES																							MARCH	16,	2016	 Page	6	
 

ADJOURNMENT  Mayor Dannheisser adjourned the meeting at 7:35 p.m. 
 











ORDINANCE NO. 03 -16 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF 
BREEZE, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE MUNICIPAL CHARTER AND 
SECTION 2-1 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES RELATIVE TO THE 
QUALIFYING DEADLINE FOR MUNICIPAL ELECTIONS; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Santa Rosa County Supervisor of Elections provides election 

administration services for the City pursuant to an Interlocal Agreement; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Supervisor of Elections advised the City that its current qualifying period 

for election does not provide the Elections' Office sufficient time to perform all necessary 
requirements prior to Election Day; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Florida Statutes Section 100.3605 allows a municipality to amend the dates for 

qualifying for election by ordinance. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Gulf Breeze, 

Florida, as follows:  
 
SECTION 1:   Section 9(b), Elections, of the City's Charter is hereby amended as follows: 
 

Section 9(b).  Elections.  

(b)  Any qualified elector of the city who is also a bona fide resident of the city may 
become a candidate by filing with the city clerk a nominating petition signed by five (5) qualified 
electors, which petition must be submitted at least thirty-two (32) days before the election within the 
time period as provided in Section 2-1 of the Municipal Code of Ordinances.  If the city certifies, 
within two (2) days thereafter, that such petition does not contain the requisite number of qualified 
signatures, then the petition must be completed within three (3) days thereafter.  Each petition must 
contain an affidavit, to be made by the candidate, that he/she is a qualified elector and a bona fide 
resident of said city.   

 SECTION 2:  Section 2-1 of the City's Code of Ordinances is hereby amended as follows: 

Section 2-1.  Deadline for qualification of candidate. 

 The deadline for qualifying to become a candidate in any municipal election for Mayor and 
City Council shall be sixty-six (66) sixty (60) days before the election.  A candidate nominating 
petition as required by Section 9(b) of the City's Charter must be filed with the City Clerk not more 
than ninety-five (95) ninety (90) days and no less than sixty-six (66) sixty (60) days before the date 
of the election. 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 03-16 
Page 2 of 2 
 

SECTION 3:  SEVERABILITY  
 

If any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, or word of this Ordinance is for any 
reason held by any court to be unconstitutional, inoperative, invalid, or void, such holding shall not 
in any manner affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 
 

SECTION 4:  CONFLICT   
 

The provisions of this Ordinance shall be deemed to control and prevail over any ordinance, 
charter provision, or portion thereof in conflict with the terms hereof.  

 
SECTION 5:  EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
This Ordinance shall become effective upon its adoption by the City Council.  

 
PASSED ON THE FIRST READING ON THE 21st DAY OF MARCH, 2016. 
 
ADVERTISED ON THE         DAY OF                           , 2016. 
 
PASSED ON THE SECOND READING ON THE         DAY OF                           , 2016. 

 
  CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA  
 

 
By:__________________________                 

               Matt E. Dannheisser, Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED TO BY:  
 
__________________________ 
Leslie A. Guyer, City Clerk or 
Stephanie D. Lucas, City Clerk 




























	March 21 2016 Regular Meeting
	March 7 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes
	March 7 2016 CRA Mintues
	March 16 2016 Executive Minutes
	Officer Patrick Pulley
	Ordinance 02-16
	Ordinance  3- 16 Election Deadlines
	Resolution 08-16 TDT FY2016 Budget
	Stearns Street Dumpster 03 09 2016



